MINUTES OF SPECIAL BUDGET WORK SESSION
OF THE NEWPORT NEWS CITY COUNCIL
HELD IN THE 10" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2400 Washington Avenue

April 1, 2008
1:00 p.m.
PRESENT: Madeline McMillan; Sharon P. Scott; Jos€phVhitaker; Charles C. Allen; Herbert
H. Bateman; and Joe S. Frank ---6
ABSENT: William F. Haskins -- et e |

OTHERS PRESENT: Randy W. Hildebrandt; Stuart EtzKéMabel V. Washington; Alan
Archer; Neil Morgan; Cynthia Rohlf; Butch Blanks;lén Jackson; Chief James Fox; Gregg
Jones; Lisa Cipriano; Robyn Rose; Rhonda EvertteveSCarpenter; Chad Pritchett; Monique
Warren; Florence Kingston; Mike Barber; Lillian Tay Reed Fowler; LaVerne Lovett;
Caroline Hurt; Glenn Butler; Andy Stein; Izabeleszynski; Brian Ramaley, Eileen Leininger;
Thomas Murphy; Al Riutort; Sheila McAlister; SabikBirschauer; Jennifer D. Walker; Cleder
Jones; Lottie Vincent; and Kim Lee

l. Fiscal Year Operating Budget

As a follow-up to the March 25, 2008 Work SessobrCity Council on the FY
2009 recommended Operating Budget, City Managedddilandt scheduled a series of
presentations with the Departments of Parks, Reore& Tourism, Libraries and Information
Services, Juvenile Services, Public Works, Publiditids, Police, Human Resources, and
Finance. Additionally, he would report on expeuadss proposed for the City’s reserve funds.
He introduced Mr. Mike Barber, Assistant Direct@epartment of Parks, Recreation &
Tourism. (A copy of the presentation, “FY 2009 @img Budget,” including highlights of the
above department presentations, is attached and anpdrt of these minutes.)

1) Parks, Recreation and Tourism

Mr. Barber reported three main areas impactedF¥ie2009 Operating Budget
request for the Department of Parks, RecreationofiriBm: 1) The Downing Gross Cultural
Arts Center; 2) Tourism Development; and 3) Spe€iadnts.

Mr. Barber stated, as with the FY 2008 Operatingdai, the Downing Gross
Cultural Arts Center had the most significant budge impact to the Department of Parks,
Recreation and Tourism. It was anticipated thdit fiunding for the facility, once entirely
operational, would total $1,427,552. Understandhey current fiscal climate that now existed
within the City, Parks requested $315,219 in adddl funding for FY 2009, for the Downing
Gross Cultural Arts Center, bringing the total 19(8,839. The budget did not include funding



Page 2
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

for additional full-time personnel and was suffiti¢o begin a variety of quality programs. Mr.
Barber indicated, depending on the success ofdtenpal revenue stream, some programs may
be limited in operation during FY 2010, particijarhuseums and galleries. Funding for four
full-time personnel would remain in the budget tigb FY 2009, excluding the contracted
Executive Director.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the addi@br$$20,000 request noted
under Internal Services. Mr. Barber replied th®,8Q0 additional funding noted in Internal
Services was for outside printing and reproductamtviertising, and repairs.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the fundex funds went into a
designated fund for galleries. Mr. Barber replieddraiser funds would be set-up in a special
foundation account, with the majority of the funglinsed for the museum and the set-up and
establishment of the Anderson Johnson Gallery.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the Cowtiegal Security budget line
item covered any work that remained to be done. Bdarber replied the Contractual Security
line item was for security and contractual empleyeé@th the majority of the funding being used
for inside security.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the cost edema complete the Anderson
Johnson exhibit. Mr. Barber replied the cost estenwas as much as $500,000 for design and
construction of the Anderson Johnson Gallery.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the amountuoiding the City paid to have
the Anderson Johnson collection stored. Mr. Barbplied he was not sure of the exact amount,
but would provide City Council with the information

Councilwoman Scott felt the City could start thesign and construction of the
Anderson Johnson exhibit with the funding usedtdoesthe collection. Mr. Barber replied there
was a tremendous amount of detail that had to bsidered when constructing an art exhibit,
such as the exhibit had to be airtight.

City Manager Hildebrandt explained a consideradeount of funding was
required to properly construct and set-up the AsmierJohnson Gallery. He stated Parks,
Recreation & Tourism planned a presentation to Cibyincil, during a Work Session in June
2008, to discuss the creation of a tax-exempt fatiod that could generate private dollars for
the gallery and museums in the Downing Gross Calltarts Center.



Page 3
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Mayor Frank inquired about a programming budget the Downing Gross
Cultural Arts Center, and whether programs and/iiets were planned. Mr. Barber replied the
programming budget was approximately $300,000, whitcluded funding for personnel,
supplies and equipment.

Mayor Frank inquired whether any concerts or ddenperformances were
scheduled for the auditorium of the Downing Gros#t@al Arts Center. Mr. Barber replied no
concerts or dramatic performances were schedutet jradicated it might be sometime before
the auditorium was opened.

Mayor Frank inquired about the anticipated opgrdate for the auditorium. Mr.
Barber replied the anticipated opening date fordhditorium was not yet determined due to
potential litigation with the contractor becausedgéfunctional peeling panels.

Mayor Frank inquired about the $100,000 apprdjora for the Executive
Director whose primary responsibility was fundmagsifor the Downing Gross Cultural Arts
Center. City Manager Hildebrandt replied fundragswas only one of the Executive Director’s
responsibilities.  His responsibilities also inckdd direction of the facility in providing
programming recommendations, and supervision @t sta

Mayor Frank inquired whether there was enougldifum in the budget to allow
the Executive Director to run the Center as he weagiired to do. He felt to not provide
sufficient funding for the Executive Director to dos job, would create a problem. City
Manager Hildebrandt felt $1.45 million was sufficigo operate the Center, but since the facility
was just getting started, it was hard to judge ajeg expenses. This amount was a best guess,
in terms of staffing, and performances. Mr. Barheped that many performances would be
self-supporting.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the respongjbof staff at the Downing
Gross Cultural Arts Center. Mr. Barber replied Mdichele Gilliam, Director of Programs,
handled programming at the Center and worked vighWickham Avenue Alliance, Newport
News Public Schools, etc., and an Administrativeordmator worked with the Executive
Director and handled the administrative dutiesheffacility.

Mr. Barber reported the Department of Parks, &aon and Tourism
recommended eliminating the City’'s General Fundtrdomtion of $147,158 to the Tourism
Development Fund, which translated into an ovesraluction of $310,233 over two years. The
total budget for FY 2009 totaled $1,567,400. Haext it should be noted that the total budget
would not be affected or reduced by this reductidhe Tourism budget had been weaned from
needing General Fund contributions. Transient raamrevenue, received by the City, had
increased significantly during the past few yeard should provide the current level of service



Page 4
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

for the Tourism Development office. To further igéte the loss of the General Fund
contribution, Parks, Recreation and Tourism alsippsed the conversion of one part-time staff
assistant position in the Tourism office to a tuthe Graphics/Media Specialist. This change
would allow the Tourism office to reduce dependeocérigh cost contractual graphic services,
saving $25,000 - $40,000 annually. While staff wasnfortable that the elimination of the
General Fund contribution would result in a negligiimpact to Tourism operations, it was
important to caution that transient room tax rexenmay level. This leveling may limit future
ability to utilize transient tax growth to fund me@ases in Tourism’s operating costs. Steeply
rising fuel prices and a decline in hotel and mathstruction were two variables that might
contribute to transient room tax stagnation. Ts&mrivas now running a self-supporting program
because the revenue was exceeding the expenditures.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether a trendsa@merging for the City to
use transient room tax to fund tourism, rather thapplement the City’s contribution to tourism.
She stated the agreement with the Hospitality Aatioo, when they agreed not to fight an
increase in the room tax, was that the transieoimrdax would supplement the City's
contribution to tourism. The most expensive partad tourism was advertising and joining and
coordinating with other communities to advertise tlegion’s tourism market. City Manager
Hildebrandt replied room tax was generating moreneyothan what the City was effectively
spending, in terms of a Tourism effort. The amafrttansient room tax revenue coming in was
sufficient to conduct a reasonably good tourisngpam for the City.

Councilwoman McMillan noted the City was also wettting funding from the
State in FY 2009 for its historical entities whonked under a limited budget. She hoped the
transient room tax funding would be used to supplanhistorical entities if it was going to be
shifted under Tourism. City Manager Hildebranditesti he eliminated the $150,000 General
Fund supplement to the Tourism office in comparisgonthe amount of funding that was
generated from transient room tax. He felt withrenlbotels and motels opening, transient room
tax revenue would continue to increase.

Councilwoman McMillan urged the City Manageikiep a close eye on
transient room tax revenue, should the rate of pacay decrease.

Mayor Frank stated when travelling and stoppihgane of the State operated
facilities, he looked for brochures advertising ent News and did not find any. He found
brochures for other localities and inquired whyréhevere none for Newport News. Mr. Barber
replied the City supplied the State Welcome Centeith brochures and flyers of Newport
News. He stated he would research the matterdorerihe information was being disseminated
at such facilities.

City Manager Hildebrandt requested that Mr. Bameport back to City Council
about the amount of funding spent on advertisingtate Welcome Centers, and how the bro-



Page 5
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

chures were distributed and disseminated at thktifsss Mr. Barber replied he would look into
the matter.

Mr. Barber stated Parks proposed that fundingthfer City’s Special Events
program be reduced by 10% for FY 2009 (impactingnés to be held in calendar year 2009).
He reported the 10% reduction would affect the amhai funding available for programming
and marketing, but should not diminish the quadityevents, which were attended by more than
225,000 people annually. To ensure that publietgadnd other logistical requirements were
met, special consideration would be given to maiimg funding for events that had seen large
increases in attendance, i.e. Hollydazzle, the Fedtival of Folklife, Fourth of July Stars in the
Sky and St. Patrick's Shamrock Celebration. Theppsed 10% reduction also included a
recommendation to discontinue funding for the ahnvmeyards by the Fountain event,
produced by the Virginia Arts Festival. The Vineys by the Fountain event was a ticketed
event, and had the potential of becoming fully-seibported. The total reduction for the City’'s
Special Events was $99,931.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether a portiaf the Special Events
funding went to the community. City Manager Hildefudt replied $30,000 was earmarked for
Special Events and would be targeted to vendaifse rommunity.

City Manager Hildebrandt requested a report oacth Events funding broken
down by events. Mr. Barber replied he would previity Council with the information.

Mayor Frank felt a fair number of entertainmeatirges would perform at City
Center for free if they were invited, i.e. the Ydrkver Band or Orchestra and other musical
artists and groups. He suggested that Mr. Baugk into the matter. Mr. Barber replied he
worked closely with the Arts Commission and indschhe would look further into the matter.

2) Libraries

Ms. lzabela Cieszynski, Director, Department obraries & Information
Services, proposed that the Literacy Program aedSimbregional Library for the Blind and
Physically Handicapped be discontinued and the Weshue Library be closed to the public.

Ms. Cieszynski reported the annual cost for theraity Coordinator was
$65,839. She stated the Literacy Coordinator piexviliteracy services to adults who read
below 8" grade level and who would be enteriffggfade GED classes. In FY 2006, there were
40 active students enrolled in the program, contptrel 3 active students who used the program
during FY 2007, at which point it was decided teexaluate the program and refocus on family
literacy. Libraries transferred students to Panen®READS (Literacy Council) where Newport



Page 6
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

News Redevelopment & Housing Authority had GED stss Libraries spent part of FY 2008
redesigning the Literacy program to meet familgriicy needs.

Ms. Cieszynski proposed eliminating the Subregjidribrary for the Blind and
Physically Handicapped that was headquartered etMhain Street Library, which served
residents of Newport News, James City County, Afilsburg and York County. She reported
circulation usage dropped from 17,806 in FY 20029722 in FY 2007, and users dropped
from 373 in FY 2000 to 304 in FY 2007.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired what attributed tfoe drop in circulation and
users from FY 2000 to FY 2007. Ms. Cieszynskiiegppart of the drop could be attributed to
marketing, on Libraries’ part, or patrons were fioding the Libraries. Media also was
available that was beginning to replace servicésred by the Subregional Library, i.e. talking
books, which were now available on CD and downldddem the internet.

Mayor Frank inquired about the consequences Her geople that would lose
services provided by the Subregional Library. Kgeszynski replied there would be minimal
consequences to the public. There was a Regiobadrly in Richmond for the Blind and Vision
Impaired that had a toll free number and there m@asost to ask for service. A patron could
either e-mail, fax, or phone in their requests #émel turn-around time was the same as the
Subregional Library. The one concern expresseddays of the Subregional Library was that
they might lose the personal touch. But she fadt the Richmond Regional Library would
develop that personal touch.

Mayor Frank inquired whether Libraries could dgtate assistance for the
Subregional Library. Ms. Cieszynski replied notStassistance was available for the program.
She stated the City charged James City County,idffilburg and York County $120 per
customer. In the past grant money was receivedherSubregional Library, but the State
discontinued the grants due to financial difficedti She stated staff involved in the program
would be absorbed into Libraries’ part-time budget.

Ms. Cieszynski reported one option presentedha 2008 Facility and Space
Needs Study of the Newport News Public Library sgstrecommended that the City close the
West Avenue Library. She reported the West Avelnbeary served the downtown area (301
census tract) and noted the building had histogsighation. The West Avenue Library
contained the Captain Christopher Newport muraAbgn Jones, Jr., which had been painted
and restored. The West Avenue Library was witht rhiles of the Pearl Bailey Library and
was not ADA accessible. The West Avenue Library wesmost under-utilized library branch
with four full-time staff members. It handled orly5% of the total circulation in the library
system, 4% of the door count for the number of feeepo visited libraries in Newport News,
and handled under 4% of the reference and reddsirat



Page 7
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Mayor Frank inquired about savings in closing West Avenue Library. Ms.
Cieszynski replied the City would save $205,980F¥1 2009 by closing the West Avenue
Library.

Ms. Cieszynski stated Libraries considered: bkidg the West Avenue Library
to the public: 2) keeping the space viable; 3) mhoyg two annual bookmobile stops for the
downtown area; 4) allowing Pearl Bailey Library dagment the bookmobile service; and 5)
reassigning staff to existing vacancies.

Ms. Cieszynski reported the impact of closing\West Avenue Library included:
1) patrons would be served by the bookmobile araflFailey Library; 2) consideration of
moving Technical Services to West Avenue; 3) Frieod the Library would be offered old
Technical Services space at Grissom Library; and#ff would be absorbed into existing
vacancies, with one position being assigned neveslut

Mayor Frank stated, as inquired at the March ZH)8 Work Session of City
Council, he would like an analysis of the savingsclosing the West Avenue Library and
alternate savings that might be realized if the \/We®nue Library were left open. He voiced
concern about closing the library considering thty @as trying to improve the downtown area
and the Navy housing project that was under dewedop. It seemed to him that with all the
naval personnel, the new carrier that was goingédb built, and the new vessels that were
coming in for repair and maintenance, opportunigeisted to provide more services at the West
Avenue Library. He felt closing the library, aidipoint, was “penny-wise, pound-foolish,” but
was mindful of the need to save money. He inqualeaut other alternatives to closing the West
Avenue Library. City Manager Hildebrandt inquirédw would $200,000 be saved in the
Library budget, which was the rationale behind iclggshe West Avenue Library. Library staff
felt closing the West Avenue Library was the wayréaluce cost to Libraries, rather than
reducing services. He questioned where City Cowvanted him to reduce funding in order to
make up the difference. His recommendation wadase the West Avenue Library, mainly due
to the facility study that suggested, in the loag¥t much funding would be needed to upgrade
the West Avenue Library to make it ADA accessilaled to concentrate the City’s resources on
the other three regional libraries with the creataf a forth library in mid-town, and a fifth
library in Lee Hall.

Councilwoman McMillan stated the City did not baw make the West Avenue
Library ADA accessible because it was a historidding. She agreed with Mayor Frank and
indicated not only was the City having an influxnefw Navy housing, but felt that would spur
redevelopment of some of the older houses in tka,arvhich was already taking place and
added another customer base. She inquired whétbearies would be able to handle an
increased customer base through two bookmobilestrandfer of services to the Pearl Bailey
Library. She felt the reason of ADA accessibiligeded to be eliminated.



Page 8
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether Libraries sidared reducing its hours as
opposed to closing the West Avenue Library, so wtenarea grew, and usage increased, it
would be easier to make the transition. Ms. Cieskireplied all other libraries were open
approximately 70 hours per week and the West Avéiluary was open 45 hours a week. The
Library staff had talked about reducing hours asWWer/enue, but it did not generate a sufficient
amount of savings. Even if hours were reducedvsytb ten it would not save enough to make
a difference.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about reducing thenber of days the library was
open. She received letters from people who used.itbrary for various reasons, and felt if it
were advertised to be open on various days, i.eaddy, Wednesday, Friday, the public could
adapt. Ms. Cieszynski replied that was a decigiah City Council had to make.

Councilwoman McMillan stated it was a decisiomtti€City Council could not
make until they knew the cost savings involved, @ltdreducing the number of days the library
was open was a good idea. Ms. Cieszynski estimétedurs were reduced by half the City
could possibly see a $100,000 savings.

Mayor Frank reminded during budget negotiationsRY 2007, when City
Council was trying to reduce the FY 2008 budgebnaier to provide the citizens a reduction in
the tax rate, the City Manager furnished a lisiteins for discussion and consideration that the
City could live with or without. He asked the CManager to provide City Council a similar list
for FY 2009. City Manager Hildebrandt replied aflthose proposals were gone because they
were included in the cuts in FY 2008.

Mayor Frank suggested that the City Manager comeitipa list of projects that
he felt were nice to do, but marginal, so that @tyuncil could have an informed discussion.
City Manager Hildebrandt replied there was an aafamatters City Council could consider, i.e.
reducing the residential reconstruction progran$B0,000 to keep the West Avenue Library
opened. He felt almost anything in the budget tzat a significant amount of dollars could be
reduced to keep the West Avenue Library openedhéutid not know where to start.

Councilwoman McMillan suggested that the City Magragpuld cease buying
tables at charitable events. City Manager Hildebtaeplied that would only save City Council
$20,000.

Vice Mayor Allen stated the City Manager’s asstimp that every department
had to suffer in reducing the budget was not necggsapplicable to every department, and
maybe Libraries was one department that shoulth@atpplicable. City Manager Hildebrandt



Page 9
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

stated when you looked at what was cut in otheradepmgnts you would see that most
departments suffered reductions. He noted long-trategies and felt it made sense to close
the West Avenue Library and provide services whbeze were more patrons. He stated City
Council was at the point in the budget where thag to make difficult decisions, and felt as
they continued through the budget process, theyifigd something else to cut instead of
closing West Avenue. City Manager Hildebrandt @ated he would continue to look for
alternatives, but tried to give a sound recommeodabased on funding the Library had and
how it would be spent effectively.

Mayor Frank asked the City Manager to providey Gouncil with a list of
alternatives in saving $200,000, so that Counaild¢denake an informed decision. He wanted to
know whether there were other options. City Managjilebrandt stated he would provide City
Council with the next best recommendations on hogatve $200,000.

3) Juvenile Services

Mr. Larry Robinson, Director, Department of Judeibervices, stated in an effort
to reduce the FY 2009 budget for Juvenile Serviaexst analysis was done of the feasibility to
continue operation at the Less-Secure Facility.aAssult of the study, he recommended that the
Less-Secure Facility be closed.

Mr. Robinson reported that the Less-Secure Faglibyided: 1) short-term crisis
intervention; 2) individual/group counseling; 8creational, social/cultural activities; 4) twenty-
four hour supervision; 5) law relation educationups; 6) Public School education, which was
handled by Hampton Public Schools; 7) pre/postatigpnal care; and 8) emergency shelter.
The facility was presently located in the City oampton. The City of Newport News was
responsible for the staffing and daily operatiorthef facility. The City of Hampton was only
responsible for the maintenance and upkeep ofatiéty.

Mr. Robinson stated, in 2003, the Department wiedile Justice, the State
regulatory and accreditation agency for juvenileedgon facilities, expressed concern about the
chronic overcrowding of numerous facilities in Min@a. Therefore, the Department of Juvenile
Justice, in partnership with the Annie E. Caseyrfdation, launched a juvenile detention reform
project which implemented the following objectivds:eliminated inappropriate or unnecessary
use of residential facilities; 2) minimized failsréo appear in court and the incidence of
delinquent behavior; and 3) redirected public foes to alternative strategies, such as
community-based programs. As a result of the esgof the project, the Less-Secure facility’s
average daily population decreased from 23 ressdar2003 to 13 residents in 2007. In several
cases, the population had been as low as fivegtd egsidents.



Page 10
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Mr. Robinson reported closure of the Less-Secuwiitiawould eliminate 14 full-
time positions. Those positions would be integtateéo Juvenile Services’ current vacancies
and would save the City $619,000. It would costdditional money to absorb the Less-Secure
population.

City Manager Hildebrandt pointed out that they@iad a contract with the City of
Hampton, which obligated the City to run the prograThe City was asking for Hampton’s
cooperation to close the facility. He had not reeg a response from the City of Hampton. He
sent a copy of the letter to the judges and plano@deet with them on April 3, 2008.

4) Public Works

Mr. Reed Fowler, Director, Department of PublioNks, reported increased costs
associated with the maintenance of infrastructureestments, funding for employee pay
increases and unavoidable non-personnel expensages, required a ten cent ($.10) increase in
the base rate of the Sewer User Fee for FY 2009.

Mr. Fowler reported requirements of the Virginiadaegment of Environmental

Quality (DEQ) Consent Order was having a signiftaarpact on the City’s budget as well as the
entire region. He reported expenses related teetiggneering study and compliance with the
consent order were anticipated to cost the City®dllion over the next five years. A five-year
budget of anticipated needs relating to complianith the initial phase of the Consent Order
included: 1) staffing to manage the Consent Or@grconsulting engineering expenses; 3) a
crew; 4) equipment/materials to address “Find and Ssues identified by the engineering
study; 5) debt service for $8 million of anticipateapital work necessitated by the engineering
study; and 6) legal fees and repayment to the GeéReind of $3.5 million front-funded to start
the engineering study.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the “Firaohd Fix” Sewer Program
applied only to the most aging sewer lines, whible shought were identified in a study a
number of years ago. If so, what percentage ofstwer system would the “Find and Fix”
apply. Mr. Fowler replied the funding amounteds®# million in pending sewer repairs versus
more after the conclusion of the studies.

Mr. Fowler stated the City recommended that thel$urequired to pay for the
Consent Order be generated through a surchargd.db/$ICF (hundred cubic foot). The
surcharge would generate $3,060,000 per year amdder the cash flow required to pay these
costs.

Mayor Frank suggested the City Manager correspaiti members of the
Congressional delegation to see whether the Citydoenlist some federal assistance in comply-



Page 11
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

ing with the DEQ Consent Order, specifically alated to the sewer requirements. Mr.
Fowler replied he would look into the matter, e Environmental Protection Agency’s posture
was that they were making deposits into the rewgiMioan fund and the City was taking
advantage of that fund. City Manager Hildebraegiied he would look into the matter.

Vice Mayor Allen inquired about the proposal ttdeadditional personnel to the
staff of Public Works to meet the DEQ Consent Onadguirements and whether Mr. Fowler
projected the number of personnel to be hired. Rdrwvler replied, in FY 2009, he planned to
add an engineer to manage the flow model and &tstdinician to manage the administrative
duties.

Mr. Fowler reported Public Works had receivedleac bill of health in 2002
from the Department of Environmental Quality. RoubNVorks was caught off guard when it
received the DEQ Consent Order and its expensyg@nements.

Vice Mayor requested that Mr. Fowler explain tbkean bill of health in
relationship to the DEQ project.

Mr. Fowler stated in 2002 the State came to tiitg &f Newport News and
indicated they wanted to conduct an inspection. Staée noted they were going to cover every
record the City owned, and in the end were goingaime up with some type of determination
about what type of organization the City was. WtienState left the City in 2002, they praised
the City for their efforts and organization, andetthere would be no Consent Order. From
Newport News, the State went to Hampton and Nosfelko both received Consent Orders. Six
years later, Newport News was involved in the matte

City Manager Hildebrandt inquired whether it wéasir to say that the
Environmental Protection Agency’s involvement hadcéd the Department of Environmental
Quality to deal with the matter as a region rathan separately. Mr. Fowler replied yes.

City Manager Hildebrandt stated the City got brdugto being part of the
regional problem, even though the City was doingugih to avoid the problem in the past.

Vice Mayor Allen inquired whether the clean kot health was related to an
administrative clean bill of health or whether iasvrelated to how the City managed its sewer
system. Mr. Fowler replied it was related to beatthministrative and management.

Vice Mayor Allen inquired whether the City expedta significant impact, in
terms of the Consent Order from the City’s originlgan bill of health, and why. Mr. Fowler
replied the City had already seen an impact of $7lbon, just in consulting fees, which were
requirements under the Consent Order that eveisdjation had to fulfill before performing the
other matters that were assigned, i.e. modeling.



Page 12
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Vice Mayor Allen stated whenever you saw a burke fthat it meant an
interested group had lobbied Congress or a depattoneated an issue in which they could get
paid fees. He inquired how the City would mandg# process to ensure those groups were not
impacting the City. Already, they were going tdlect $7 million worth of consulting fees and
the City had not spent a dime on system’s corrastidHe inquired how the City would manage
consultants to ensure that the City was not pagxgggerated fee. The consultant always
budgeted on the side that protected them rather tthe side that protected the City’'s money.
Mr. Fowler replied through intense scrutiny, andedo part of the process of developing
technical specifications would do that. The techhispecks would lock the consultant into
working only one way. The region would work togatko ensure protection.

Mr. Fowler reported Public Works recommended&2eduction in the level of
residential street reconstruction in FY 2009, whaghounted to a total reduction of $1.7 million.
He stated the reduction was targeted to affect oelidential street reconstruction and
maintenance, and included street reconstruction @adng as well as street milling and
overlays.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the prioegi Public Works would
institute for residential streets that had beentingito be paved for a number of years. Mr.
Fowler replied it was difficult to prioritize, butoted they would go by the PCl (Pavement
Condition Index) curve and pave the streets thaewser to outliving their pavement life.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether Mr. Fowled lalist of streets that were
scheduled for reconstruction and paving. Mr. Fowéplied Public Works had a list of streets
that were scheduled for maintenance, and notedishevas posted on their web-site. He
indicated he would provide the information to Giguncil.

Mr. Fowler reported Public Works received a CDBf@nt of $10,000 to install
155 square yards of sidewalk in the Southeast camtynand planned to reconstruct 5.5 miles of
arterial/collector streets and reconstruct 4.8 snileresidential streets.

5) Waterworks

Mr. Brian Ramaley, Director, Department of Pulllitlities, noted the FY 2008
year-end projections for the Department of Publiditids. He expected revenues to come in
over budgeted projections, due to the fact thassadere on target. He stated expenditures were
under budgeted, due to the hiring freeze that waiggted through June 30, 2008. For FY 2008,
Waterworks expected to have favorable budget opesat



Page 13
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Mr. Ramaley explained the allocation of Cash mesgrojections for FY 2008,
which noted where the reserves stood in FY 200&revthey were projected to stand at the end
of FY 2008 and how Waterworks intended to apply&Bé million favorable operation from FY
2008. Waterworks broke their reserves up intoeltd#erent general categories as laid out in
the Master Bond Resolution and the way the findrotasultant looked at it: 1) Revenue Funds;
Renewal and Replacement Funds; and Rate/Demands Fuhdtal reserves at the end of FY
2008 were projected to total $23 million. Waterwshoped to reach $28 million in FY 2010.

Mr. Ramaley reported the total FY 2009 OperaBuglget for the Department of
Public Utilities was $81.7 million, an increase29% over FY 2008. He noted three areas of
the budget were responsible for the 2.9% increBs@ersonnel Costs — $1,068,834; 2) Capital
Equipment/Improvements — $730,708; and Debt Ser&#94,024).

Mr. Ramaley reported the fee and action proposaF12009 included: 1) Water
Rate — effective July 1, 2008 (no increase propdeedhe Low Usage Lifeline Water Rates).
All other consumption increased from $2.92 to $816#); 2) Summer Consumption Rate (SCR)
increased proportionately effective July 1, 200®nfr $0.59 to $0.61/HCF; 3) System
Development Fees (SDF) increased 8% by an Ordinamesgously enacted.

6) Police

Chief James Fox, Newport News Police Departmepiorted the Newport News
Police Department had made progress in the follgwaireas: 1) crime; 2) improved relationship
with community; 3) added special units; 4) utilizegecial overtime; 5) continued to attract
guality people; and 6) continued to examine itsadigpent for reorganization.

Chief Fox noted the cost of progress to Newp@aiwNPolice department included:
1) impact on personal lives of officers; 2) not eglo people to handle workload; 3) working on
overload; 4) long-range impact on personal livesnégative impact on morale; 6) ongoing
changes to meet organization needs; 7) officersntdtom patrol for investigations; and 8) units
formed as problems emerged (Crime Response Teangsand Violent Crime Task Force.)

Chief Fox reported violent offense hotspots healmg in Newport News from
2006. He described a one week snapshot of viakemie in Newport News that included one
homicide, four suicides, one overdose death, fiygravate assaults, five robberies, one sexual
assault, and 30 plus officers called out in a tattsituation. He had six people assigned to
investigate deaths and they had to look at evagydsuas if it were or could be a homicide.

The immediate concerns of the Police Departmeatewyouth crime, gun
violence, drugs, growth in the City, and traffide stated, as development grew, the Police



Page 14
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Department was going to need help. In FY 2007dugiested 30 positions and received 14, in
FY 2008 he requested 31 positions and received, raomein FY 2009 he requested 21 positions
and received two positions. Growth in the City rothee next several years would require the
Police Department to hire more personnel (10 offiGeyear; 3 support positions a year; and two
dispatchers a year). If asked about his presesd,fee needed 12 patrol officers, 6 homicide
officers, two officers to the robbery unit, anddérofficers for the special victims units. The
City also needed a Cyber Crime Unit to prevent esmagainst persons in the financial
community. The Police Department also needed tobm& Resource Officers.

Chief Fox stated the Police Department was goingdik harder at reducing
Crime, but indicated crime continued to grow. Ithtesd crime would eventually decrease as the
community, City departments, and the Police Depantrwvorked together.

Councilman Whitaker stated he met with a groupnafisters in the Southeast
community to discuss a youth snitching program.e §houp planned to visit various churches,
in the Southeast Community, during Sunday serviceemphasize what snitching meant to the
Police Department and how to report an incidenth® Police Department. A program was
planned for April 13, 2008.

Mayor Frank inquired about the cost to hire, paamd recruit a new officer for
the Police Department. Chief Fox replied 20 Polifficers would cost $2.3 million. Also,
when he received funding for police officers he dezk funding for equipment, i.e. police
vehicles, which cost $600,000.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the $2.3 millionlirded funding for equipment.
Chief Fox replied the $2.3 million included the ttushire a police officer and equipment.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the percentdg#ficers who participated in
the take-home car program. Chief Fox replied haldvgrovide the percentage of officers
participating in the take-home car program at erldate.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether take-homwers were limited to one
per household for a married couple. Chief Foxiegpho, due to different assignments.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether bicycletpds had ceased or whether
they were only used during summer months. Chigfriéplied bicycle patrol had not ceased and
were used year round. There were 65 bicycles ¢imout the City that were used in hotspots.
Bicycle patrol was used extensively during the €timas holiday around the mall.



Page 15
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether additionaids were being allocated for
programs in the northern end of the City sinceghgas a new crime wave headed that way.
Chief Fox replied the Police Department had a meetiegarding crime each Wednesday
afternoon, noting everything happening in the Cilfya particular precinct was having an issue,
he would move personnel from one precinct to amotbedeal with that issue, i.e. from the
Central and South precinct to the North precir€hief Fox stated crime affected the entire City.

7) Human Resources

Ms. Caroline Hurt, Director, Human Resourcestestdhe goal of the City was to
position itself as an employer of choice with cotitpee salaries, benefits and programs to
ensure a competent, skilled and motivated workfomogv and in the future. Human Resources
focus included: 1) attracting a qualified workfor@ developing competency and leadership
capacity; 3) providing encouragement and incentteeiscrease motivation; 4) recognizing and
rewarding employees for innovation and problemisglvand 5) retention of employees.

Ms. Hurt reported there were 2,728 budgeted Giperal Fund positions. She
stated the City's turnover rate for the past twargehad fluctuated between six to eight percent,
which was higher than it had been previously. hheber of regular positions filled in 2007
was 685, with 455 hired from the outside. Thereend21 employees eligible to retire. The
recent number of annual retirees totaled 90 to Ille average age of employees was 43 to 45.
The average tenure of employees was just underei@rs. The City had a young workforce and
motivation was a factor the City had to consid&he felt it was going to be more difficult to
attract employees, over the coming years, duestwiaking population.

Ms. Hurt stated Human Resources’ initiatives twrkmvith employee recruitment
needs included: 1) workforce planning; 2) schodfidatives; 3) leadership development, and
supervisory training; 4) use of technology; andegpgnition programs.

Ms. Hurt reported the City monitored compensationstantly by surveying the
field. Human Resources considered total compemsand the value of benefits. She stated the
proposed FY 2009 compensation plan was designechdimtain current compensation and
recognize employees to the maximum extent possifilee features of the compensation plan
included: 1) increasing salary ranges by 2%; 2)leyges would be eligible for salary increases
averaging 3%; 3) effective January 1, 2009, elgibimployees in the first quartile would be
eligible for an additional increase of 2% and 4¢r@asing paramedic supplements for Fire
department employees from $2,400 to $4,000.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about which departimetperienced the greatest
turnover rate. Ms. Hurt replied the City experieticthe most turnover in administrative
positions and hourly skilled workers across theg Cit



Page 16
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether any stugligad been done about the
proposed retirement benefit changes and how it dvatfiect the retirement rating. Ms. Hurt
replied the proposed changes should not affectdtiement rate. City Manager Hildebrandt
stated the proposed retirement changes were stedcgo not to provide an incentive for an
employee to retire earlier.

City Manager Hildebrandt congratulated Ms. Hurth@r planned retirement from
the City effective August 1, 2008. He thanked foerher tireless effort and outstanding service
to the City. City Council concurred and congratedMs. Hurt on her planned retirement from
the City.

8) Finance

Ms. LaVerne Lovett, Director, Department of Finan stated the two most
challenging issues facing employers nationwide viex@thcare and pension.

Ms. Lovett reported, for FY 2009 the City projtta 5% increase to the City's
premium for healthcare insurance, compared to 2%Yir2008. She stated employees enrolled
in the family plan would pay an additional $12 peonth. She pointed out the national trend
was a 10 to 12% percent increase per year. Thewais under the trend, but had experienced
steady increases in healthcare costs for the pashsyears. Since 1998, rates had increased by
117.5%.

Mayor Frank inquired whether there was a distinctitade between a husband
and wife healthcare insurance premium when no @nlavere included in the family plan. He
inquired whether there was any basis for negogiatiith Anthem to have a differentiation made
between family coverage and spouse coverage. Mett stated she would look into the matter.
Overall, the cost for dependents, under 21 yeamyef was not as expensive as the cost for a
spouse.

Ms. Lovett reported the cost of family healthcarsurance for FY 2009 totaled
$978 per month, which equaled $11,700 per yeause$s,400 per year in 1998. She stated the
City was concerned about the increased cost oftiezaike, and felt it needed to tackle the issue.
For the FY 2009 Operating Budget, the City budge$déd.5 million for healthcare, which
represented 75% of the total cost of the plan.

Mayor Frank inquired about savings if the emp&yentribution was raised by
$20 per month for family coverage rather than $&2 mponth. Ms. Lovett replied she would
research the matter and report back to City Council

Ms. Lovett stated containment strategies to reduzalthcare costs included: 1)
wellness programs; 2) encouraging use of geneungsii3) developing premium sharing alterna-



Page 17
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

tives; and 4) offering a less expensive plan totnregividual needs of employees who did not
have a high level of medical needs. She state@ityehired a benefits consultant, with industry
knowledge, to help the City through the processackling the escalating cost of healthcare
insurance.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether a safetywetild be included in a less
expensive healthcare plan for employees who dichawé a high level of medical needs, should
their health deteriorate, as related to the aboveatnment strategies noted by Ms. Lovett. Ms.
Lovett replied an employee would only be eligildechange plans once per year.

Mayor Frank noted various healthcare policiegreff discounts to non-smokers
and non-drinkers. He inquired whether such distowere offered by Anthem. Ms. Lovett
replied there were no discounts offered for nonism® or non-drinkers under the City’s
healthcare plan with Anthem.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the City could calesigiving a cost reduction
benefit to healthier employees who did not use ashmof their healthcare benefits, i.e. a
premium rebate. He felt some employees abused heslthcare benefits. City Manager
Hildebrandt replied the way to address that wasdoease the co-pay so that employees did not
go to the doctor unless they absolutely had tos. IMvett replied Finance would research some
of the noted ideas.

Ms. Lovett reported FY 2009 marked the third yefthe City’s plan to increase
the composite contribution rate to meet the norcoat rate of the Pension Fund. She stated the
rate for FY 2009 increased to 5.8%, which equabeal ¢ontribution of $18.6 million. Ms. Lovett
stated the $18.6 million helped, but the Actuargt recommended $39 million for FY 2009.

Ms. Lovett reported strategies to address thg<Citnfunded liabilities included
increasing the contribution level and modifying pen benefits. In FY 2009, the City
completed its three year plan to increase the ittion rate to normal cost (approximately 6%
of payroll). She stated part of the recommendatitmat went to the employees and the
Retirement Board included a contribution targenhphlhich was spread out over six years and
would address the funding to get to 100% of thelireq or recommended rate. City Manager
Hildebrandt stated it would take $2 to $2.5 millipar year, for the next six years, to get to
100%.

Ms. Lovett noted revisions to the City’s retiramh@lan were being studied by the
Retirement Review Commission. She stated the gexpoevisions had been forwarded to all
City employees for their review and comments.

Mayor Frank inquired about the timeline for biimg the proposal to City
Council. City Manager Hildebrandt replied befdne end of June 2008.



Page 18
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Ms. Lovett reported Post-Retirement Health predidenefits in three areas: 1)

Health Insurance; 2) Dental; and 3) Life Insurabeaefits. The City proposed a contribution of
$11.7 million for Post-Retirement Health in FY 200fhich was an increase of $2.6 million over
FY 2008. The projected expenses for FY 2009 tdt§#5.5 million. She stated the $15.5
million had been reduced by $1 million due to theppsed changes to the City’s life insurance
benefit. The Actuary recommended $30 million e Post-Retirement Health. Ms. Lovett
reported the City’s expenses increased 135% frodd 202007, due to rising healthcare costs for
retirees. City Manager Hildebrandt noted the iaseewas also due to the fact that 100 retirees
were being added per year and people were livingdo

Ms. Lovett stated the proposed strategies fobilsgteng the Post-Retirement
Health by $1 million for FY 2009 included decreasgiife insurance coverage to $10,000 per
employee. Currently, a retiree received one-héltheir salary in life insurance, which was
reduced by 20% per year, down to $10,000. Shedntitere were retirees who had been
grandfathered so they would not experience a remuah their life insurance. The City paid
100% of the life insurance premiums for retiredsfe insurance premiums for retirees were
considerably higher than for active employees. ddst of life insurance for an active employee
was $.37 per 1,000 face value insurance and $3pe$4,000 for a retiree. In 2010, the City
hoped to offer a lump-sum death benefit of $10,d8€ad of the $10,000 life insurance benefit.
Currently, the death benefit was $3,300. In addijtithe $10,000 death benefit would be paid
from the Pension fund, which had more assets, rétiaa the Post-Retirement Health Fund.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about the number afpleyees who were
grandfathered to receive one-half of their salariife insurance. Ms. Lovett estimated the total
of grandfathered employees was 800.

City Manager Hildebrandt stated the City was pgy$600,000 per year for life
insurance for active employees and $1.7 million Iffe insurance for retirees, which was a
significant difference.

Mayor Frank inquired about the number of retinebs died in a given year. Ms.
Lovett stated she would provide City Council witletnumber of retirees who died in a given
year.

Ms. Lovett stated long-term strategies for redgoexpenses in Post-Retirement
Health included studying eligibility based on years service, premium sharing, and plan
coverage.



Page 19
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

9. Reserve Funds

City Manager Hildebrandt reported when the FY 2@@counting books were
closed, $25,510,200 of the General Fund balancengpity accumulated from prior year
operating surpluses, FY 2006 and FY 2007) was dateg for specific projects. He stated the
City also had $30 million that was in an undesigdagmergency cash flow fund. In July 2007,
$7,000,000 of that amount was appropriated to sup@ht current fiscal year debt service and
cash capital expenditures. Since that time, artiaddl $7,130,000 had been appropriated for
nine projects, the largest of which were the Sapnigewer Consent Study ($3,400,000), Rouse
Tower Renovations ($1,200,000), Fire Station No. ($€00,000), Citywide Special Events
($550,000) and City Hall/CSB Building Renovatio$$@0,000). Of the remaining $11,328,200,
he recommending that appropriations be approvethéofollowing projects: 1) Fire Apparatus -
$1,020,000; 2) Software and Hardware (IT Fund),280,000; 3) Refuse Trucks - $575,000; 4)
Real Estate Mass Appraisal System - $2,300,008p8}heast Waterfront Fund - $1,000,000; 6)
Security Cameras - $500,000; and 7) Local MatchMatdle Ground Boulevard - $1,00,000.
Total additional projects totaled $7,595,000, whiamounted to an unappropriated and
uncommitted balance of $3,785,200.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the $1 lioih proposed for the

Southeast Waterfront Fund would include the hirgigadditional police and whether the $1
million would be a continuing expense. She redallee City did not want to use reserve funds
on continuing expenses. City Manager Hildebrarefilied that was the downside of the
appropriation. The City was going to have to makemitments in FY 2010 to begin to add
police officers into the budget, as noted by Ckiet. This had to be looked at and funded in FY
2010. This was the only way he found an oppdtguio do this without cutting another $1
million from the operating budget. City Manageiddbrandt felt it was important that activity
be started in the Southeast community, along theekivant, if the City wanted to make the area
attractive for a redevelopment project.

Mayor Frank accepted the premise of the needotaeftain projects in the
Southeast community in preparation of developmbat,had a difficult time using one-time
funding for salaries and new hires. City Counbtilagys tried to stay away from using one-time
funding for salaries and new hires. He undersibwas a difficult budget year, and this may be
the only way it could be done. He preferred tamde time things with one time money.

City Manager Hildebrandt proposed $600,000 féetaome cars for the Police
Department. He felt that was a legitimate one-tempense, although, each year the Police
Department would need more take home cars. Hetlielt was $600,000 well spent and
recommended that it be included in the FY 2008 aymaitions.



Page 20
Minutes of Special Budget Work Session
April 1, 2008

Councilman Bateman inquired whether the City Mgpamahad considered
outsourcing the maintenance and repair of vehiclegy Manager Hildebrandt replied that had
been studied in the mid-1980s. It was concludetth®City could do a better job.

Councilman Bateman inquired about a purchasingadium for vehicle parts.
City Manager Hildebrandt replied the City was inxad in a purchasing consortium for vehicle
parts. He stated the City was also working witth sbhools to do joint purchasing of parts.

City Manager reported, of the unappropriated amtommitted balance of
$3,785,200, the City would add whatever would balized in reserves for FY 2008. The
anticipated projection in the mid-year review wasnaall surplus of approximately $5 to $6
million. He felt most of the surplus should garoreasing the City’s undesignated fund balance
from 9.4% to 10%, so that the City could get thatto a level that was more comparable with
other double A rating communities.

City Manager asked that City Council agree torappate the funding from
reserves along with the operating budget at theeséime, which allowed him to make
commitments and encumber funds before it becanex@nse in FY 20009.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the Cityad been notified about a
grant award for Middle Ground Boulevard. City Mgea Hildebrandt replied the City had not
been notified. He stated the appropriation for diedGround Boulevard would be held until
after July 1, 2008.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS,
ON MOTION, COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 4:28 P.M.

Jennifer D. Walker, CMC Joe S. Frank
Chief Deputy City Clerk Mayor

Presiding Officer
A true copy, teste:

City Clerk



